
MARYLAND AVIATION ADMINISTRATION 
Office of Procurement 

P. O. Box 8766 
Baltimore/Washington International Thurgood Marshall Airport  

Maryland 21240-0766 
 

February 26, 2015 
 

Addendum No. 1 
Request for Technical Proposals 

 
MAA-AE-15-002 

 Comprehensive Construction Management and Inspection Services at 
Baltimore/Washington International Thurgood Marshall and Martin State Airports  

 
 
TO ALL PROSPECTIVE OFFERORS: 
 
This addendum is to provide further clarification to the Request for Technical Proposals (RFTP).  
To the degree that this Addendum is inconsistent with the RFTP, the terms of this Addendum shall 
take precedence. In all other respects, the RFTP remains unchanged and its terms and conditions are 
hereby reaffirmed. 
 

All addenda received should be acknowledged in the Bid Proposal Affidavit provided in the 
Proposal Documents of the RFTP.  Failure to acknowledge receipt of addenda does not relieve an 

Offeror from complying with terms of any such amendments. 
 

OFFER DUE DATE 
 

Technical Proposals are due no later than 
2:00:00 p.m., Local Time, March 23, 2015 

 
It is recommended submittals be delivered by hand or commercial delivery service to: 

 
Ms. Norie A Calvert 

Office of Procurement and Contracts Management 
Fourth Floor, C-405 

707 North Calvert Street 
Baltimore MD  21202 

 
 

This Addendum No. 1 consists of 9 pages including the following attachment: 
 
Request for Technical Proposals: 

1. Attachment 1 - Acknowledgement of Receipt (1 page) 
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I.  Remove/Replace:  
   

Remove:     Section XV.D.4 and 5 
 

4. The major factors/criteria to be used in evaluating the technical 
proposals and oral presentations shall include, but may not be 
limited to, the following.  Proponents are encouraged to fully 
address each category completely.  Some evaluation criteria listed 
below restrict the number of pages in Consultant’s response to that 
item.  Pages submitted beyond the stated requirement will not be 
reviewed or considered. 

 
 Key Staff: 
  

i. Identify any proposed changes in key staff from those 
persons identified in the Expression of Interest (EOI). The 
scores for the key staff proposed in the EOI will be carried 
forward and included in the total scoring determined in the 
evaluation of the RFTP. Note, the MAA reserves the right 
to increase/decrease the key staff scoring in the RFTP 
based upon the responses received in this submittal.   

 
ii. For any proposed additions (e.g. Safety Officer) or changes 

in key staff, provide a resume (limit two pages per resume) 
organized as follows: Employer; Total years of 
experience/years with current employer; 
Education/degrees; Relevant licenses/certifications; 
Chronological listing of relevant project experience 
beginning with the most recently completed project 
indicating the year the project started and ended; Name of 
the Airport (include the ICAO Airport Identifier) where the 
project was completed;  Name of the project; Project’s 
constructed value; Project position/title; and a brief 
summary of relevant project experience.   

 
a. Technical Approach: 

 
Describe the overall technical support concerning CMI.  
Describe in detail the technical methodology that will be used 
for "Sample Task A" and "Sample Task B".  Discussion should 
include but not be limited to, inspection program, testing 
procedures, QA/QC, construction phasing & duration, airport 
security & safety, and maintenance of airport 
facilities/operations and potential errors and omissions that 
may result in Request for Information (RFIs)/Change Orders 
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(Cos) posing significant risks to operations, the project budget 
or schedule.  (25 pages maximum). 

 
b. Management Approach:  

 
Describe the overall management approach for the Consultant 
team and describe in detail how CM projects including the 
sample projects will be managed.  Discussion should include, 
but not be limited to, project organization (include organization 
chart), assignment and duties of key staff and support staff as 
may be required (assistant resident engineers, inspector, 
administrative personnel, etc.), coordination/communication 
procedures with the architect/engineer and MAA Project 
Manager, cost control, schedule control, and change order 
process. Describe procedure for monitoring and maintaining 
compliance with MBE/DBE requirements, addressing the fact 
that the specific nature of the potential tasks to be assigned 
under this contract cannot be fully specified in advance. (10 
pages maximum)  

 
c. Availability of Key Staff and Capacity to Accomplish: 

 
Indicate the availability of key staff for all members of the 
consultant team, and capacity to accomplish services in 
required time (including prime participants and 
subconsultants).  (2 pages maximum) 

 
d. Comments on RFTP: 

 
Provide comments on scope of services, CM's role, 
recommended additional services, items to be provided by CM, 
and sample projects.  Suggested innovations to improve the 
services to be provided under this contract are encouraged and 
may include such areas as Partnering, Alternative Project 
Delivery, Owner Controlled Insurance Programs, etc. (5 pages 
maximum) 

 
e. Response to EOI Briefing 

 
The RFTP submittal shall summarize the verbal debriefing 
provided by the MAA concerning your EOI submittal and 
address all concerns, requests and recommendations discussed 
at the debriefing.  (5 pages maximum) 
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f. Interview. 
  

The MAA will conduct interviews.  The Proposers will be 
given one hour to present in Power Point format a summary of 
their RFTP submittal emphasizing each of the six categories 
listed above in this section. The one hour presentation will be 
followed by up to thirty minutes of Q&A. One (1) Original and 
twelve (12) bound copies of the Power Point presentations 
shall be provided to the MAA prior to beginning the 
presentation.  The handouts shall be landscape formatted in 
such as fashion as to include a copy of the Power Point image 
to be presented on the left side of the page and sufficient space 
on the right side of the page to record notes for each Power 
Point slide presented.  10 copies of the Power Point on thumb 
(travel) drives shall be left with the MAA after the 
presentation. 

 
5. Financial Responsibility and Protection of State: Consultant must 

include evidence of financial capacity to provide the services 
required by this RFTP and protect the State against errors and 
omissions (prime participant).  Evidence may be in the form of a 
declarative statement that the Consultant has the financial capacity 
and capability to provide the proposed services and measure of 
protection for the State against errors and omissions; or by 
providing a copy of its current, signed insurance certificate 
confirming it carries the coverage required at time of contract 
award.  (Refer to RFTP Attachment B) 

 
 
Replace with: Section XV.D.4    
 

4. The major factors/criteria to be used in evaluating the Technical 
Proposals shall be limited to items XV.D.4.a thru XV.d.4.h below 
which are listed in order of importance.  Proponents are 
encouraged to fully address each category and in the specific order 
listed below.  Any information provided in excess of the stated 
page limits will not be considered and could result in lower rating 
for the Consultant. 

 
a. Interview: 

  
The MAA will conduct interviews.  The Proposers will be 
given one hour to present in Power Point format a summary of 
their RFTP submittal emphasizing each of the six categories 
listed above in this section. The one hour presentation will be 
followed by up to thirty minutes of Q&A. One (1) Original and 
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twelve (12) bound copies of the Power Point presentations 
shall be provided to the MAA prior to beginning the 
presentation.  The handouts shall be landscape formatted in 
such as fashion as to include a copy of the Power Point image 
to be presented on the left side of the page and sufficient space 
on the right side of the page to record notes for each Power 
Point slide presented.  10 copies of the Power Point on thumb  
drives shall be left with the MAA after the presentation. 
 

b. Key Staff: 
  
i. Identify any proposed changes in key staff from those 

persons identified in the Expression of Interest (EOI). 
The scores for the key staff proposed in the EOI will be 
carried forward and included in the total scoring 
determined in the evaluation of the RFTP. Note, the 
MAA reserves the right to increase/decrease the key 
staff scoring in the RFTP based upon the responses 
received in this submittal.   

 
Ii For any proposed additions (e.g. Safety Officer) or 

changes in key staff, provide a resume (limit two pages 
per resume) organized as follows: Employer; Total 
years of experience/years with current employer; 
Education/degrees; Relevant licenses/certifications; 
Chronological listing of relevant project experience 
beginning with the most recently completed project 
indicating the year the project started and ended; Name 
of the Airport (include the ICAO Airport Identifier) 
where the project was completed;  Name of the project; 
Project’s constructed value; Project position/title; and a 
brief summary of relevant project experience.   

 
c. Technical Approach: 

 
Describe the overall technical support concerning CMI.  
Describe in detail the technical methodology that will be used 
for "Sample Task A" and "Sample Task B".  Discussion should 
include but not be limited to, inspection program, testing 
procedures, QA/QC, construction phasing & duration, airport 
security & safety, and maintenance of airport 
facilities/operations and potential errors and omissions that 
may result in Request for Information (RFIs)/Change Orders 
(Cos) posing significant risks to operations, the project budget 
or schedule.  (25 pages maximum). 
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d. Management Approach:  
 
Describe the overall management approach for the Consultant 
team and describe in detail how CM projects including the 
sample projects will be managed.  Discussion should include, 
but not be limited to, project organization (include organization 
chart), assignment and duties of key staff and support staff as 
may be required (assistant resident engineers, inspector, 
administrative personnel, etc.), coordination/communication 
procedures with the architect/engineer and MAA Project 
Manager, cost control, schedule control, and change order 
process. Describe procedure for monitoring and maintaining 
compliance with MBE/DBE requirements, addressing the fact 
that the specific nature of the potential tasks to be assigned 
under this contract cannot be fully specified in advance. (10 
pages maximum)  
 

e. Availability of Key Staff and Capacity to Accomplish: 
 
Indicate the availability of key staff for all members of the 
consultant team, and capacity to accomplish services in 
required time (including prime participants and 
subconsultants).  (2 pages maximum) 
 

f. Comments on RFTP: 
 
Provide comments on scope of services, CM's role, 
recommended additional services, items to be provided by CM, 
and sample projects.  Suggested innovations to improve the 
services to be provided under this contract are encouraged and 
may include such areas as Partnering, Alternative Project 
Delivery, Owner Controlled Insurance Programs, etc. (5 pages 
maximum) 
 

g. Response to EOI Briefing 
 
The RFTP submittal shall summarize the verbal debriefing 
provided by the MAA concerning your EOI submittal and 
address all concerns, requests and recommendations discussed 
at the debriefing.  (5 pages maximum) 
 

h. Financial Responsibility and Protection of State:  
 
Consultant must include evidence of financial capacity to 
provide the services required by this RFTP and protect the 
State against errors and omissions (prime participant).  
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Evidence may be in the form of a declarative statement that the 
Consultant has the financial capacity and capability to provide 
the proposed services and measure of protection for the State 
against errors and omissions; or by providing a copy of its 
current, signed insurance certificate confirming it carries the 
coverage required at time of contract award.  (Refer to RFTP 
Attachment B) 

 
 
 

II. Responses to Questions from Firms: 
 

Q1. Is a section or cover letter allowed for a general introduction?  Section B of the 
Proposal Requirements would indicate that a cover letter (proposal transmittal 
letter) is permitted to allow for the acknowledgement of possible addendums.  If 
so, what is the page limit?  Is this part of the scoring criteria? 

 
A1. The proposal transmittal letter shall be limited to two pages. The scoring criteria 

are listed in section XV.D.4 of the RFTP. 
  
Q2.      Is there a page limit for the Key Staff section?  There is a page limit for any 

proposed additions or changes in key staff but not for the entire section.  
 
A2. Resumes for changes to Key staff from EOI or for additional key staff shall be 

limited to three pages. Also see A10.   
 
Q3.      Is there a section for Project write-ups?  This is also sometimes termed 

“Qualifications of Firm”.  Ten (10) projects were provided in the EOI.  Does 
MAA want more detailed write-ups of the projects provided?  If so, what is the 
page limit?  

 
A3. There is not a section for Qualification of Firm; additional details on 10 projects 

provided in EOI is not required    
 
Q4.      Is there a page restriction of the “Typical/Sample Task” write-ups --- both 

technical and administrative?  If no, it is assumed that it is just less than the 
overall Technical Approach (25 pages) and Management Approach (10 pages) 
limits.   

 
A4. Response to both sample tasks as well as any other appropriate information shall 

be limited to 25 pages in technical approach and 10 pages in management 
approach. 

Q5.      Do the identified page limitations include pages that may contain exhibits, charts, 
graphics, etc.?  

 
A5. Yes 
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Q6.      Is a specific Statement of Project Understanding section required?  If so, what is 
the page limit?  

 
A6. No, a Statement of Project Understanding section is not required. 
 
Q7.      The EOI required the use of Time New Roman, 12 point, font.  Is this the same 

requirement for the Technical Proposal?  If yes, can alternative font types/sizes be 
utilized for exhibits, charts, graphics, etc.?   

 
A7. Time New Roman, 12 point font is required however, Times New Roman, 10 

point font may be used for exhibits, charts, graphics, etc. 
 
Q8. If graphics, charts, exhibits, etc. are permitted, can they be in 11”x17” fold-out 

format?   
 
A8. Yes. 
 
Q9. In our preparation of responses for the EOI Debriefing comments, we would like 

to know if BOLD changes can be noted on previously submitted resumes to 
provide further clarification.  Can these “revised” resumes be submitted in the 
Key Staff section of the RFTP response?   

 
A9. Yes. 

  
Q10.    Is it allowable to submit revised resumes of the same key staff that were proposed 

in the EOI, in order to address feedback received in the briefing on our EOI? Or 
are resumes limited to key staff substitutions and new key staff positions? 

 
A10.  Yes  

  
Q11.    Section XIV – Staffing Levels in the RFTP identifies estimated staffing levels, as 

a percentage of overall labor time, required for the six year contract.  The earlier 
EOI identified 15 Key Staff positions. We note that certain of the Key Staff 
positions from the EOI are not included in the staffing levels in the RFP as 
follows: 
•             Principal-In-Charge 
•             Resident Architect 
Please clarify the expected percentage of overall labor time for these staff 
positions. 

 
A11. The Resident Architects labor time is combined with the Resident Engineer; i.e.  

the 10% represents the hours for RE & RA.  Labor time for Principal in-Charge 
shall be included in the Overhead. PIC’s level of effort would be as needed to 
ensure successful implementation and execution of the CMI program by the 
successful consultant.     
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 Q12.   Section XIV – Staffing Levels in the RFTP includes a “Safety Officer” as one of 
the Contract Staff positions.  This staff position was not included in the earlier 
EOI.  Please clarify the required qualifications for this staff position, and the 
expected percentage of overall labor time for this staff position. 

 
A12.    The Safety Office is indicated in the RFTP under contract staff item 9 with 5% of 

the overall Labor hours 
  

Q13.    Section XV – Proposal Requirements does not specify a format for the proposal 
(IE: SF-330).  Is there specific format required for the RFTP Response? 

 
A13.  The format is left to your discretion.   

  
Q14.    Section XV – Proposal Requirements, Paragraph: a - Key Staff appears to only 

require resumes for proposed changes (from the earlier EOI submission), and any 
proposed additions.  Is it expected that resumes for the Key Staff from the earlier 
EOI be included in the RFTP?  If not expected, is it acceptable to include them? 

 
A14.    Resumes should not be included unless a previously submitted resume has been    

revised or it is a new resume for a proposed key staff change or addition. 
  

Q15.    Section XV – Please confirm the Availability of Key Staff requirements.  Section 
XIV states the anticipated percentage of participation MAA expects each staff 
member to be engaged in the contract.  Confirm that Availability of Staff 
requirement is to confirm those stated percentages or participation.  Additionally, 
will past performance in the provision of staff on previous projects at MAA be 
considered if provided? 

 
A15.  Involvement and level of efforts required from key staff is entirely dependent on 

MAA’s needs based on number & complexity of tasks assigned to the successful 
consultant.  As indicated in the RFTP the staffing levels are estimates of level of 
efforts during the six year terms of the contracts.  The consultant is expected to 
ensure key staffs are available as needed to accommodate the MAA’s need. 

   
Q16.   Section XV – Proposal Requirements, Paragraphs: b through f include page 

limitations.  Are full size graphic inserts; charts; photographs; etc considered as a 
part of the page limitations?  What are the limitations related to page size, font 
and size, page layout etc...? 

 
A16.   Refer to A5, A7 and A8. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
End of Addendum No. 1 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT 
 
 

RFTP ADDENDUM NO. 1  
 

MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
MARYLAND AVIATION ADMINISTRATION 

 
MAA-AE-15-002 

Comprehensive Construction Management and Inspection Services at 
Baltimore/Washington International Thurgood Marshall and Martin State Airports 

 

The undersigned acknowledges that RFTP Addendum No. 1, dated February 26, 2015, to 
Maryland Aviation Administration Specifications for Contract No. MAA-AE-15-002 has been 
received by the undersigned and will be incorporated in all copies of said specifications in the 
possession of the undersigned. 

It is understood that all RFTPs submitted in response to MAA-AE-15-002, will be presumed to 
be based upon full knowledge of the contents of RFTP Addendum No. 1. 

 
 

     
  (Company Name) 
 
 
 By:     
  (Signature-Authorized Official) 
 
 
      
            (Title) 
 
 
      
            (Date) 
 
 
 

NOTE: PLEASE SIGN AND DATE THE “ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT” 
AND RETURN IMMEDIATELY VIA FACSIMILE: 410-694-6290. 

 

   
MAA-AE-15-002  RFTP Addendum No. 1 
Comprehensive CMI Services at 
BWI Marshall & MTN State Airports   
  


	Office of Procurement
	P. O. Box 8766
	All addenda received should be acknowledged in the Bid Proposal Affidavit provided in the Proposal Documents of the RFTP.  Failure to acknowledge receipt of addenda does not relieve an Offeror from complying with terms of any such amendments.
	OFFER DUE DATE
	ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

	RFTP ADDENDUM NO. 1
	MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

